
DRC Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, September 18, 2018 

 

 

 

Committee Members Present: City Engineer Norm Beagley, Engineer Jon Lundell, Building Official Randy 

Spadafora, Public Works Director Wade Eva, City Manager Ben Reeves, and Community Development 

Director Jason Bond. Infrastructure Inspection Jared Shepherd, Fire Chief Stephen Olson, and Police Chief 

Rod  Hurst  were  not  in  attendance.  (Chief  Olson  stopped  in  briefly  before  the meeting  to  provide 

comments, but had to leave before the meeting began.) 

Others in Attendance: Matt Brown High Park North, & South, and Johnson’s Grove Representative. Logan 

Moffett Johnson’s Grove Representative.  

Mr. Beagley called the meeting to order at 10:18 a.m. 

The applicant for Nicole’s Cove was not in attendance, Mr. Beagley shifted the agenda items to discuss it 

last.  

Mr. Beagley excused Fire Chief Stephen Olson, and Police Chief Rod Hurst who were not in attendance 

due to the ongoing wildfires.  

High Park South Final Subdivision Review: 

Mr. Beagley explained that this is an 18 lot subdivision on 4th West and Main Street. They have added a 

dumpster location per City Council’s conditional approval, they have proposed to locate the dumpster 

enclosure access off of 300 West. Mr. Beagley explained that the dumpster enclosure materials need to 

match the building materials.  

Police: 

Police Chief Hurst provided notes stating his concerns regarding having enough parking. He also asked 

that the HOA make requirements to prohibit junk vehicles from being stored in the parking lot.  

Public Works: 

Mr. Eva asked if Main Street will be designated as no parking. Mr. Lundell stated that on street parking 

does not count towards their parking requirement, but it is also not specifically prohibited. Mr. Beagley 

suggested that the curb return is painted red and designated as no parking to provide visibility. The 

proper distance back from the projection of the curb to meet the City’s sight distance requirements 

(thought to be 50 feet during the meeting, but needs to be verified).  

Mr. Eva asked if there will be a master meter for the water. Mr. Beagley explained that an 8” main water 

line will run down the middle of the drive aisle, each unit will have individual meters coming off of that 

water line.  Mr. Eva stated that it is difficult to maintain water mains in multi‐unit developments.  Mr.  

 



           DRC Meeting Minutes 
                    September 18, 2018 
                                     Page 2 of 6 
 

Beagley stated that future water lines need to be looped differently for the fire hydrants (not necessarily 

for this project to move forward).  

Building Official: 

Mr. Spadafora stated that units 15‐18 should be addressed off of 400 West. He clarified that all of the 

addresses will need to be odd numbers.  

Engineering: 

Mr. Beagley stated that the CC&R’s and building elevations need to be approved. A proposed power 

plan from Rocky Mountain Power is also needed for City review.   

Mr. Beagley stated that a fence is required for the South perimeter, it will need to be a vinyl or site 

obscuring fence (chain link is not allowed). He explained that the Dawe’s own land adjacent to them and 

are also under a development plan, he suggested that they may want to try to share the cost of the 

fence. He reminded them to maintain proper site distance near the end on 400 west street. 

All of the onsite sewer will be private until it connects to the City and needs to be labeled as such. The 

maintenance, and upkeep for the onsite private sewer needs to be addressed in the CC&R’s.  

Mr. Brown asked what quantities are needed. Mr. Beagley explained that any onsite water line, storm 

drainage, water meters, hydrants, etc. need curb and gutter, sidewalk, road cuts. Mr. Beagley stated 

that there are two irrigation lines on 400 West, the developer will need to verify that they are 

connecting to the correct line. Mr. Eva stated that it will be the line with valves on it. 

Mr. Brown asked about bonding for landscaping and a fence. Mr. Beagley stated that bonding will be 

needed for both. 

Planning: 

Mr. Bond: ARC approved the renderings contingent upon colors being updated. He has since talked to 

the architect and it should be taken care of before the project is started. He suggested that the Shared 

parking agreement is defined within the CC&R’s. The CC&R’s will need to be turned in prior to issuing a 

building permit.  

Mr. Beagley stated that the landscaping has been submitted, but still needs City staff review.  

No Comments from City Manager Ben Reeves. 

Motion: 

Mr. Lundell motioned to approve the High Park South’s final subdivision application pending; 

landscaping plans are reviewed and approved, engineering redlines are addressed, the CC&R’s are 

reviewed and approved, and addressing is changed as discussed. Mr. Reeves seconded. The vote was 

unanimous in the affirmative.  



           DRC Meeting Minutes 
                    September 18, 2018 
                                     Page 3 of 6 
 

High Park North Preliminary Subdivision Review: 

Mr. Beagley explained that this is a proposed plan for 14 units on 300 West and Main Street. This plan 

currently shows consolidated of all parking on the North side. Mr. Bond asked why they changed their 

plans.  Mr. Brown explained that they were unable to meet open space and add extra 2 feet for the 

drive aisle to meet IFC. Mr. Brown clarified that he can’t meet the required 15‐foot setback and extra 2‐

foot drive aisle without changing the plans altogether. Mr. Bond and Mr. Beagley felt that the previous 

plan was better.  

Mr. Beagley stated that pushing all parking to the North doesn’t seem to make the most sense. Mr. 

Beagley stated that it makes more sense to have parking to the North of each building for the unit’s 

rather than pushing it all to the north. Mr. Brown asked if the open space requirement can be lowered. 

Mr. Beagley explained that he will discuss the drive aisle width requirements with Fire Chief Olson & Mr. 

Bond.  

Police: 

Police Chief Hurst provided notes stating his concerns regarding having enough parking. He also asked 

that the HOA make requirements to prohibit junk vehicles from being stored in the parking lot.  

Engineering: 

Mr. Beagley stated that addressing needs to be modified off of 300 West for the north building units. 

Fencing is required on the North and West sides. Details for the tot lot equipment are needed for 

review. UDOT approval for distancing and spacing will be needed for the final plan. Mr. Beagley stated 

that there is a concern with the grading on the West boundary. Mr. Brown explained that they are 

looking at installing a small retaining wall for drainage retention onsite, etc. Mr. Beagley stated that a 

garbage truck won’t be able to get to the trash enclosure.  A power plan is needed.  Mr. Beagley also 

stated some concerns with the storm drain. 

Public Works: 

Mr. Beagley stated that a 4‐inch lateral with a master meter is shown for these units. Mr. Eva stated that 

City lines can’t be run into Multifamily unit’s. He requested that a note is added stating that anything 

coming off of the 4‐inch valve is property of the HOA. Meaning the City will maintain up to the 4” valve. 

Mr. Beagley sewer will connect to the existing 8‐inch line in 300 West.  

Mr. Eva asked where snow removal will be stored, he explained that it can’t be pushed into the road. 

Mr. Brown stated that it will be stored in the back. Mr. Beagley requested that a note is added stating 

that snow needs to be maintained onsite.  

Mr. Eva expressed concern regarding the street becoming a two‐way street. Mr. Reeves asked Mr. 

Brown when they plan to finish the units. Mr. Brown stated that they would like to obtain C of O’s by 

June 2019. Mr. Reeves explained that the West side of 300 West, north of 100 North, will be widened,  



           DRC Meeting Minutes 
                    September 18, 2018 
                                     Page 4 of 6 
 

and sidewalk will be added. The intent of this is to provide safe walkways for kids The City also intends, 

through a future project on the east side, to turn 300 West into a two‐way street hopefully prior to this 

development being completed. Mr. Beagley stated that the entirety of the existing curb on 300 West 

needs to be marked red for no parking with signage indicating such. Mr. Brown suggested that a left 

turn only sign is installed where vehicles are going out of the parking lot until the road becomes a two‐

way street. The signs could then be removed when/if the road becomes a two‐way street. Mr. Reeves 

suggested that a notice is included with the C of O’s for each unit indicating that until the road becomes 

a two‐way Street, only left turns will be permitted out of the parking lots.  

Planning: 

Mr. Bond explained that because of this developments proximity to a park, a different amenity could be 

provided rather than a tot lot. He stated that he doesn’t see the proposed tot lot as very functional. He 

explained that the amenity will require the same square footage, but could be a BBQ area, pavilion, etc. 

Mr. Brown stated that the owner   may prefer a BBQ area instead.  

No Comments from City Manager Ben Reeves, and Building Official Randy Spadafora.  

Motion: 

Mr. Bond motioned to table High Park North preliminary approval pending the discussed comments, and 

with the recommendation that the previous plan is returned to provide parking in two locations, and 

pending discussion with Chief Olson regarding drive isle widths. Mr. Lundell seconded. The vote was 

unanimous in the affirmative.  

Johnson’s Grove Preliminary Subdivision Review: 

This is a 23‐unit multifamily subdivision located on 498 West. It has one access off of Main Street. There 

are two buildings connected with a breezeway (essentially one building). Mr. Beagley asked if two 

building permits will be required. Mr. Spadafora stated that it will only need 1 building permit because 

the buildings will be connected. The tot lot has been moved to the North East side.  

Police: 

Police Chief Hurst provided notes stating his concerns regarding having enough parking. He also asked 

that the HOA make requirements to prohibit junk vehicles from being stored in the parking lot.  

Fire: 

Chief Olson recommends that a fence is installed along Main Street. He has also indicated that a fire 

hydrant is needed, preferably near the access point. Fire sprinklers will be required for the building. A 

26‐foot drive aisle will also be required per International Fire Code.   

Mr. Brown stated that one of the units will be converted into an amenity such as a club house, work out 

room etc. because they could not find additional parking for this last unit.   



           DRC Meeting Minutes 
                    September 18, 2018 
                                     Page 5 of 6 
 

Public Works: 

Mr. Eva asked if a master meter will be required. Mr. Lundell stated that it can be and it has been added 

to the redlines. Mr. Beagley explained that a 4‐inch master meter with a vault will be required.  

Mr. Beagley stated that red curbing will be required at the access point for a clear view area. Mr. 

Beagley stated that the P.I. and culinary water lines across 4th West are required to be upsized with this 

project in order to meet City Code. 

Building Official: 

Mr. Beagley stated that addressing has not yet been provided. Each unit needs to be individually 

addressed off of Main Street. Mr. Spadafora stated that the addresses need to be even numbers.  

Planning: 

Mr. Bond stated that the entrances need to face the street in order to meet City ordinance. He 

suggested that a centralized entrance with a breezeway opening towards the street is added, in order to 

meet the intent of the ordinance. Mr. Bond clarified that more details will be needed prior to the 

Architectural Review Committee review.  

Engineering: 

Mr. Bond asked if this project will be phased. Mr. Moffett stated that it will be built all at once.  Mr. 

Beagley stated that more details regarding the Tot lot are needed. The CC&R’s need to be submitted and 

reviewed. Landscaping needs to be reviewed. Mr. Beagley asked that the connection of the buildings is 

shown on the plan. UDOT approval will be needed for any roadway dedication and all improvements 

within their ROW. Sumps aren’t allowed, an underground retention facility (i.e. storm tech, R‐Tanks, 

etc.) will be required. UDOT may approve some or all of the underground retention under the sidewalk. 

A perpetual easement will be needed for the public drainage infrastructure, if located on private 

property. The existing sewer easement will need to be shown and labeled on the plat. The arterial street 

lights also need to be labeled.  

Mr. Bond stated that the sewer easement still needs to be taken care of. Construction easement and 

perpetual easement. Make sure that the ties and calls along the frontage match the 2017 record of 

survey (ROS) prepared by JUB Engineering. 

Mr. Beagley explained that the one bedroom units don’t meet the minimum size requirements. 750 

square feet is required for one bedroom units, and 900 square feet is required for two bedroom units.  

No Comments from City Manager Ben Reeves. 

Motion: 

Mr. Lundell motioned to table Johnson’s Grove Apartments until the redlines are addressed. Mr. Bond 

seconded. The vote was unanimous in the affirmative.  



           DRC Meeting Minutes 
                    September 18, 2018 
                                     Page 6 of 6 
 

Nicole’s Cove Concept Subdivision Review: 

This is a 3 lot subdivision located on 100 West and 500 North. Finishing the road, curb, gutter and 

sidewalk will be required. The utilities infrastructure is existing so they can tie into existing culinary, 

sewer and P.I. 

Public Works: 

Mr. Eva asked that the road is overlaid after they have made road cuts. Mr. Lundell stated that he will 

add a comment requiring an overlay after construction.  

Engineering: 

Mr. Beagley stated that this subdivision will require water dedication. Mr. Eva asked if geo tech will be 

required for these lots. Mr. Lundell stated that it typically isn’t required unless there is road way 

dedication.  

Mr. Beagley explained that no action needs to be taken today since this is a concept review.  

No Comments from City Manager Ben Reeves, Building Official Randy Spadafora, and Community 

Development Director Jason Bond.  

General Note: 

Mr. Beagley stated that any approvals made today will be pending comments from Chief Olson. 

Approval of Minutes: 

Mr. Lundell moved to approve the minutes from August 18th 2018. Mr. Bond seconded. The vote was 

unanimous in the affirmative.  

Motion to adjourn at 11:29 a.m.  

 

 

 

 

 

____________________________ 

Kira Petersen, Deputy Recorder 

 


